DATED

21 OCTOBER 2024

**TESCO PERSONAL FINANCE PLC** as Outgoing Expenses Loan Provider

– and –

BARCLAYS BANK PLC as Incoming Expenses Loan Provider

- and -

DELAMARE CARDS FUNDING 1 LIMITED as Loan Note Issuer No.1

- and -

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON as Security Trustee

DEED OF NOVATION, AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT



1001BB.064432 4143-8586-7601

Hogan Lovells International LLP Atlantic House, Holborn Viaduct, London EC1A 2FG - ii -

### CONTENTS

CLAUSE		PAGE
1.	DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION	1
2.	NOVATION, AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT	2
3.	SEPARATE COUNTERPARTS	3
4.	FURTHER ASSURANCE	3
5.	GOVERNING LAW	3
6.	JURISDICTION	3

## SCHEDULES

1.	Amended and Restated Express Loan Agreement	4

**THIS DEED OF NOVATION, AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT** (this "**Deed**") is made on <u>21</u> October 2024.

#### BETWEEN:

- (1) TESCO PERSONAL FINANCE PLC, a public limited company incorporated under the laws of Scotland, with company number SC173199, having its registered office at 2 South Gyle Crescent, Edinburgh EH12 9FQ and including its successors in title and assigns (the "Outgoing Expenses Loan Provider" and "TPF");
- (2) **BARCLAYS BANK PLC,** a public limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales with registered company number 01026167 and whose registered address is 1 Churchill Place, London, E14 5HP (the "**Incoming Expenses Loan Provider**");
- (3) DELAMARE CARDS FUNDING 1 LIMITED, a private limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales on 11 January 2013, with company number 08356551, having its registered office at 6<sup>th</sup> Floor, 125 London Wall, London, England, EC2Y 5AS ("Loan Note Issuer No.1"); and
- (4) THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, acting through its London branch at 160 Queen Victoria Street, London EC4V 4LA (the "Security Trustee", which expression shall, whenever the context so admits, include any other trustee or trustees for the time being pursuant to the Security Trust Deed referred to below).

(each a "Party" and together the "Parties").

#### WHEREAS:

- (A) On 9 February 2024, Barclays Bank UK PLC ("BBUK"), TPF and Tesco Plc entered into a business transfer agreement (as amended from time to time, the "BTA") for the sale and purchase of TPF's banking business to BBUK by way of a banking business transfer scheme pursuant to Part VII of FSMA (the "Scheme").
- (B) The BTA provided for, among other things, the transfer of TPF's rights and obligations in respect of the credit card master trust securitisation programme in which Delamare Cards MTN Issuer plc (the "Issuer") is the issuer of notes backed by credit card receivables originated by TPF (such securitisation being the "Delamare Securitisation").
- (C) As part of the Delamare Securitisation, TPF provided an expenses loan to Delamare Cards Funding 1 Limited (the "Loan Note Issuer No.1") pursuant to an expenses loan agreement dated 24 April 2013 (as amended and restated on 20 May 2014 and 17 December 2020) (the "Expenses Loan Agreement").
- (D) It is the intention of the Parties hereto to amend and restate the Expenses Loan Agreement to novate the rights and obligations of TPF (in its capacity as Outgoing Expenses Loan Provider) to Barclays Bank Plc (in its capacity as Incoming Expenses Loan Provider) and to make consequential changes to document the historical drawdowns under the Expenses Loan Agreement by restating the relevant amortisation schedule for all outstanding drawdowns.

IT IS AGREED:

- 1. **DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION**
- 1.1 **Definitions**

(a) The expressions defined in the master framework agreement (as the same may be amended, varied or supplemented from time to time with the consent of the parties thereto) (the "Master Framework Agreement") shall, except where the context otherwise requires and save where otherwise defined herein, have the same meanings in this Deed, including the Recitals hereto and this Deed shall be construed in accordance with the interpretation provisions set out in the Master Framework Agreement.

#### 1.1 Additional definitions

The following additional definitions shall apply to this Deed:

"Effective Date"	means the Closing Date (as defined in the BTA), as notified by TPF to the Parties by email (for the purposes of the Security Trustee, to: <u>corpsov4@bnymellon.com</u> and <u>Marilyn.chau@bny.com</u> ).
"Secured Creditors"	has the meaning ascribed to it in Security Trust Deed and Cash Management Agreement (as amended and restated from time to time).
"Security Beneficiaries"	has the meaning ascribed to it in Security Trust Deed and Cash Management Agreement (as amended and restated from time to time).

#### 1.2 Third party rights

A person who is not a Party has no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce or to enjoy the benefit of any term of this Deed.

- 1.2 The Loan Note Issuer No.1:
  - (a) confirms that the amendment and restatement of the Expenses Loan Agreement contemplated by this Deed does not constitute a Basic Terms Modification;
  - (b) confirms that the amendment and restatement of the Expenses Loan Agreement are necessary to implement the transfers set out in the BTA; and
  - (c) consents to the amendment and restatement of the Expenses Loan Agreement set out in this Deed.

#### 2. **NOVATION, AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT**

- 2.1 With effect on and from the Effective Date, the Parties hereby agree that the Expenses Loan Agreement shall be amended and restated in the form set out in Schedule 1 hereto and the same shall thereafter be read and construed for all purposes accordingly.
- 2.2 With effect on and from the Effective Date:
  - (a) the Outgoing Expenses Loan Provider novates all its rights and obligations under the Expenses Loan Agreement to the Incoming Expenses Loan Provider;
  - (b) the Incoming Expenses Loan Provider agrees to be bound by the terms of the Expenses Loan Agreement in every way as if it were the original party to it in place of the Outgoing Expenses Loan Provider as the Expenses Loan Provider thereunder;

- (c) the Loan Note Issuer No.1 agrees to perform its obligations under the Expenses Loan Agreement and be bound by its terms in every way as if the Incoming Expenses Loan Provider were the original party to it in place of the Outgoing Expenses Loan Provider; and
- (d) the Loan Note Issuer No.1 and the Outgoing Expenses Loan Provider release each other from all future obligations to the other under the Expenses Loan Agreement.

#### 3. SEPARATE COUNTERPARTS

This Deed may be executed in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered will be an original, but all such counterparts will together constitute but one and the same instrument.

#### 4. **FURTHER ASSURANCE**

The parties hereto (other than the Security Trustee) agree that they will co-operate fully to do all such further acts and things and execute any further documents as may be necessary or desirable to give full effect to the arrangements contemplated by this Deed.

#### 5. **GOVERNING LAW**

This Deed and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by and shall be construed in accordance with English law.

#### 6. **JURISDICTION**

#### 6.1 English Courts

The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute (a "**Dispute**") arising out of or in connection with this Deed (including a dispute relating to any non-contractual obligation arising out of or in connection with this Deed) or the consequences of its nullity.

### 6.2 **Convenient Forum**

The parties agree that the courts of England are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle Disputes between them and, accordingly, that they will not argue to the contrary.

## AMENDED AND RESTATED EXPRESS LOAN AGREEMENT

DATED 24 APRIL 2013 AND AS AMENDED AND RESTATED ON 20 MAY 2014, 17 DECEMBER 2020 AND 21 OCTOBER 2024

> BARCLAYS BANK PLC as Expenses Loan Provider - and –

DELAMARE CARDS FUNDING 1 LIMITED as Loan Note Issuer No.1 - and -

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON as Security Trustee

AMENDED AND RESTATED EXPENSES LOAN AGREEMENT



Matter ref: 1001BB.064432 Ref: 4158-0878-7793

Hogan Lovells International LLP Atlantic House, Holborn Viaduct, London EC1A 2FG

#### CONTENTS

## CLAUSE

1.	DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION	2
2.	OBLIGATIONS AS CORPORATE OBLIGATIONS	7
3.	THE FACILITY	7
4.	UTILISATION	8
5.	INTEREST	9
6.	PAYMENTS	9
7.	REPAYMENT	9
8.	PREPAYMENT	10
9.	REPRESENTATIONS OF LOAN NOTE ISSUER NO.1 AND THE EXPENSES LOAN PROVIDER	11
10.	ENFORCEMENT EVENT	11
11.	ENFORCEMENT AND SUBORDINATION	11
12.	FEES	13
13.	ASSIGNMENT AND VARIATION	13
14.	INFORMATION AND BENEFIT	13
15.	GOVERNING LAW	13
16.	JURISDICTION	13

## SCHEDULES

1.	OUTSTANDING ADVANCES SCHEDULE	14
2.	PRO-FORMA AMORTISATION SCHEDULE	15
3.	UTILISATION REQUEST	16
4.	UTILISATION NOTICE	17
5.	UTILISATION CONFIRMATION	19

**THIS EXPENSES LOAN AGREEMENT** is made on 24 April 2013 as amended and restated on 20 May 2014, 17 December 2020 and <u>21</u> October 2024.

#### BETWEEN:

- BARCLAYS BANK PLC, a public limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales with registered company number 01026167 and whose registered address is 1 Churchill Place, London, E14 5HP (the "Expenses Loan Provider");
- (2) **DELAMARE CARDS FUNDING 1 LIMITED**, a private limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales on 11 January 2013, with company number 08356551, having its registered office at 6th Floor, 125 London Wall, London, England, EC2Y 5AS ("Loan Note Issuer No.1"); and
- (3) THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, acting through its London branch at 160 Queen Victoria Street, London, EC4V 4LA (the "Security Trustee", which expression shall, whenever the context so admits, include any other trustee or trustees for the time being pursuant to the Security Trust Deed referred to below).

#### WHEREAS:

- (A) Loan Note Issuer No. 1 has issued and may issue Global Loan Notes pursuant to a security trust deed and cash management agreement dated 31 October 2008 as amended and restated from time to time between, *inter alios*, Loan Note Issuer No.1, The Bank of New York Mellon in its capacity as Security Trustee and Barclays Bank UK PLC as Loan Note Registrar (the "Security Trust Deed").
- (B) The obligations of Loan Note Issuer No.1 under each Global Loan Note will be constituted by individual Loan Notes issued pursuant to a supplement to each such Global Loan Note (each a "Supplement to the Global Loan Note") and each forming a notional tranche of such Global Loan Note.
- (C) On any Closing Date on which Loan Note Issuer No.1 issues further Loan Notes including new tranches of Global Loan Note No.1, the Expenses Loan Provider shall, subject to certain terms and conditions being satisfied, advance additional funds to Loan Note Issuer No. 1 to provide for the payment of certain costs and expenses of Loan Note Issuer No.1 associated with the issue of the Loan Notes (including the fees, costs and expenses and any other amounts payable to the Loan Note Holder) and towards funding a Series Cash Reserve Account or a Programme Reserve Account, all on the terms and subject to the conditions contained herein.
- (D) The Security Trustee is the security trustee in respect of Loan Note Issuer No.1's entitlement under the Delamare Cards Receivables Trust as Funding 1 Investor Beneficiary for the holders of the Global Loan Notes and other Secured Creditors.
- (E) On 9 February 2024, Tesco Personal Finance PLC ("TPF"), Tesco PLC, and Barclays Bank UK PLC ("BBUK") entered into a business transfer agreement (as amended from time to time, the "BTA"), by which BBUK purchased TPF's banking business pursuant to Part VII of FSMA.
- (F) On <u>21</u> October 2024, TPF, the Expenses Loan Provider, the Loan Note Issuer No.1 and the Security Trustee entered into a deed of novation, amendment and restatement (the "**Deed of Novation, Amendment and Restatement**") to amend and restate, as from the Effective Date, the Expenses Loan Agreement to transfer the rights and obligations of TPF to the Expenses Loan Provider.

(G) From the date of this Agreement, the Initial Advance shall be deemed to be three separate Advances as set out herein.

#### IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

#### 1. **DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION**

#### 1.1 **Definitions**

In this Agreement and the Recitals, terms defined in the master framework agreement originally dated 31 October 2008 as amended, supplemented, varied, replaced and/or novated from time to time between, *inter alios*, the Receivables Trustee and BBUK (the "**Master Framework Agreement**") shall bear the same meaning herein. In the case of any inconsistency between the defined terms in each of the said documents, the definitions in this Deed shall take precedence and then the defined terms in the Master Framework Agreement shall be taken.

#### 1.2 Additional Defined Terms

In addition to the terms defined in accordance with Clause 1.1 (*Definitions*) above, the following expressions have the following meanings when used in this Deed:

"2013 Advances" has the meaning set out in Clause 4.1;

"Advance" has the meaning set out in Clause 3 (The Facility);

"Affiliate" of any Person means any other Person controlling, controlled by or under common control with such Person;

"Amortisation Schedule" shall have the meaning set out in Clause 4.9;

"**Applicable Margin**" means 1.0% in respect of the 2013 Advances and in respect of each other Advance, the margin specified in respect of an Advance in the Utilisation Notice for such Advance;

"Closing Date" means each date as shall be agreed between all relevant parties on which Loan Note Issuer No.1 will issue Loan Notes;

"**Conditions**" means the terms and conditions applicable to the Loan Notes in the form or substantially in the form set out in the Global Loan Note and as amended, substituted or otherwise altered by the Supplement to the Global Loan Note for such Loan Note and any reference in these presents to a particular numbered Condition in the Global Loan Note or Supplement to the Global Loan Note shall be construed accordingly;

"**Contribution**" has the meaning set out in clause 4.4(a) of the Receivables Trust Deed and Servicing Agreement;

"**Corporate Services Agreement**" means the corporate services agreement dated on or about the 24 April 2013 (as the same may be amended, supplemented, varied, replaced and/or novated from time to time) between, *inter alios*, Loan Note Issuer No.1 and State Street Administration Services (UK) Limited;

"**Delamare Cards Receivables Trust**" means the trusts constituted pursuant to the Receivables Trust Deed and Servicing Agreement;

"Effective Date" means the Closing Date, as defined in the BTA;

"Expenses Loan" means the aggregate principal amount of each Advance from time to time outstanding as such amount is reduced or increased from time to time by repayments or further Advances hereunder;

"Facility" means the subordinated expenses loan facility the terms and conditions of which are set out in this Expenses Loan Agreement;

"Facility Limit" means any amount as may be increased from time to time and as agreed by the Expenses Loan Provider and specified in a Utilisation Notice provided that the Facility Limit will never be greater than the aggregate amount of all Advances then outstanding;

"Final Repayment Date" means:

- (a) in respect of an Advance which is subject to scheduled principal repayments, the final Interest Payment Date specified in the Amortisation Schedule for that Advance; or
- (b) in respect of an Advance which is not subject to scheduled principal repayments, the date specified as the final repayment date in the Utilisation Notice for that Advance;

"Initial Advance" has the meaning set out in Clause 4.1;

"Initial Closing Date" means 26 April 2013;

"Initial Interest Payment Date" means the first Interest Payment Date in respect of the relevant Advance, as specified in the Utilisation Notice for such Advance;

"Interest Payment Date" means the Initial Interest Payment Date and each Distribution Date or, if such day is not a Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day;

"Interest Period" means, for the purposes of this Expenses Loan Agreement with respect to any Interest Payment Date, the period from and including the Interest Payment Date immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date to but excluding such Interest Payment Date; provided, that the initial Interest Period in respect of an Advance shall commence on and include the Closing Date on which such Advance was made and end on but exclude the Initial Interest Payment Date in respect of such Advance as stipulated in the Utilisation Notice for such Advance;

"**Investor Beneficiary**" means any Person in its capacity as an investor beneficiary of the Delamare Cards Receivables Trust;

"LNI Available Funds" has the meaning given to it in the Security Trust Deed;

"Loan Note" has the meaning set out in the Security Trust Deed;

"Loan Note Enforcement Notice" means a notice given by the Security Trustee to Loan Note Issuer No.1 under Condition 10.3 of the Global Loan Note;

"Loan Note Holder" means in respect of each Loan Note, the Person or Persons as of the date of determination entered as the Registered Holder of such Loan Note on the Loan Note Register;

"Loan Note Issuer No.1" means Delamare Cards Funding 1 Limited;

"Loan Note Issuer No.2" means Delamare Cards Funding 2 Limited;

"Loan Note Issuer No.1 Distribution Account" means the account with HSBC Bank plc with account number 73929770 and sort code 400515;

"Loan Note Register" has the meaning set out in the Security Trust Deed;

"**Outstanding Advances**" means each Advance deemed to be outstanding as at the Effective Date as set out in Schedule 1;

"**Person**" will be construed as a reference to any person, individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture, association, joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated organisation, governmental entity or other entity of similar nature (whether or not having separate legal personality);

"Rapid Amortisation Period" has the meaning given to it in the Security Trust Deed;

"Receivables Securitisation Deed" means the receivables securitisation deed dated 24 April 2013 as amended and restated on 20 May 2014 (as the same may be amended, supplemented, varied, replaced and/or novated from time to time), between BBUK and the Receivables Trustee;

"Receivables Trust Deed and Servicing Agreement" means the receivables trust deed and servicing agreement dated 24 April 2013 as amended and restated on 20 May 2014 (as the same may be amended, supplemented, varied, replaced and/or novated from time to time), between the Receivables Trustee, BBUK in its capacities as transferor beneficiary, servicer and transferor, Loan Note Issuer No.1 and Loan Note Issuer No.2 each in its respective capacity as investor beneficiary;

"Receivables Trustee" means Delamare Cards Receivables Trustee Limited as trustee pursuant to the Receivables Trust Deed and Servicing Agreement and its permitted successors;

"**Receiver**" means a Person, or Persons, appointed in writing by the Security Trustee who is to be a receiver, a receiver and manager or an administrative receiver (and who shall not be the Security Trustee or an Affiliate of the Security Trustee);

"Registered Holder" has the meaning set out in the Security Trust Deed;

"Regulated Amortisation Period" has the meaning given to it in the Security Trust Deed;

"**Relevant Documents**" means the Security Trust Deed, the Corporate Services Agreement, the Receivables Trust Deed and Servicing Agreement, the Security Trust Deed, the Global Loan Notes, each Supplement to a Global Loan Note, the Receivables Securitisation Deed, this Expenses Loan Agreement and any mandate or other agreement relating to the Loan Note Issuer No.1 Distribution Account;

"**Repayment Amount**" has the meaning given to it in clause 7 (*Repayment*) of this Expenses Loan Agreement;

"**Repayment Date**" has the meaning given to it in clause 7 (*Repayment*) of this Expenses Loan Agreement;

"Secured Creditors" means the Security Trustee and any Receiver appointed by it, in respect of amounts owing to each of them under the Security Trust Deed and any Supplement to a Global Loan Note and, in respect of a particular Loan Note, shall have the meaning attributed thereto in the Supplement to the Global Loan Note for such Loan Note;

"Security Trust Deed" means the security trust deed and cash management agreement for the Global Loan Notes dated 31 October 2008 as amended and restated on 24 April 2013 and on 20 May 2014 (as the same may be amended, supplemented, varied, replaced and/or novated from time to time) between, *inter alios*, Loan Note Issuer No.1, the Security Trustee, Loan Note Register and BBUK;

"SONIA" means the Sterling Overnight Index Average;

**"SONIA Screen Page**" means the Reuters Screen SONIA Page (or, if such page is no longer available, any replacement or successor page showing the relevant information);

"**SONIA Spot Rate**" means, on and after the date of this Agreement, the daily Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) determined by or on behalf of the Expenses Loan Provider for each Interest Period in respect of each Advance on the following basis:

(a)

- (i) in respect of each Interest Period occurring on or after the Interest Payment Date in December 2020 which relates to any outstanding Advance made prior to the date of this Agreement, the daily Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) published on the relevant Distribution Date (and relating to the immediately preceding Business Day) as provided by the administrator of SONIA to authorised distributors and as then published on the SONIA Screen Page (or, if the SONIA Screen Page is unavailable, as otherwise published by such authorised distributors); and
- (ii) for each new Advance which is made on or after the date of this Agreement:
  - (1) in respect of the initial Interest Period relating to such Advance, the daily Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) published on the relevant Closing Date (and relating to the immediately preceding Business Day) as provided by the administrator of SONIA to authorised distributors and as then published on the SONIA Screen Page (or, if the SONIA Screen Page is unavailable, as otherwise published by such authorised distributors); and
  - (2) in respect of each Interest Period thereafter relating to such Advance, the daily Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) published on the relevant Distribution Date (and relating to the immediately preceding Business Day) as provided by the administrator of SONIA to authorised distributors and as then published on the SONIA Screen Page (or, if the SONIA Screen Page is unavailable, as otherwise published by such authorised distributors);

- (b) if, on the relevant date, the daily Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) is not available on the SONIA Screen Page or has not otherwise been published by the relevant authorised distributors, the SONIA Spot Rate shall be:
  - (i) (x) the Bank of England's Bank Rate (the "Bank Rate") prevailing at close of business on the relevant Business Day; plus (y) the mean of the spread of the Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) to the Bank Rate over the previous five days on which the Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) has been published, excluding the highest spread (or, if there is more than one highest spread, one only of those highest spreads) and lowest spread (or, if there is more than one lowest spread, one only of those lowest spreads) to the Bank Rate; or
  - (ii) if such Bank Rate is not available, the daily Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) published on the SONIA Screen Page (or otherwise published by the relevant authorised distributors) for the first preceding Business Day on which the Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) was published on the SONIA Screen Page (or otherwise published by the relevant authorised distributors);

provided, that if the Expenses Loan Provider is unable to determine the daily Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) in accordance with the foregoing provisions, in relation to any Interest Period, the SONIA Spot Rate during such Interest Period will be the daily Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) last determined in relation to this Expenses Loan Agreement in respect of the immediately preceding Interest Period;

"Supplement to a Global Loan Note" shall have the meaning set out in the Trust Supplement;

"**Utilisation Confirmation**" means a notice in substantially the form of Schedule 5 (*Utilisation Confirmation*)) from Loan Note Issuer No.1 confirming the terms of the Utilisation Notice;

"**Utilisation Date**" means the Closing Date for an Advance which has been requested as specified in the Utilisation Request in respect of such Advance;

"**Utilisation Notice**" means a notice in substantially the form of Schedule 4 (*Utilisation Notice*) specifying the terms on which each Advance will be made by the Expenses Loan Provider to Loan Note Issuer No.1; and

"**Utilisation Request**" shall mean a notice in substantially the form of Schedule 3 (*Utilisation Request*) requesting one or more Advances under the Facility.

#### 1.3 **Incorporation of Common Terms**

Except as provided below, the Common Terms apply to this Agreement, where applicable, and shall be binding on the parties to this Agreement as if set out in full in this Agreement.

#### 1.4 **Further assurance**

Paragraph 1 (*Further Assurance*) of the Common Terms applies to this Agreement as if set out in full herein, and as if Loan Note Issuer No.1 was the Obligor (as defined therein) and the Expenses Loan Provider was the Obligee (as defined therein).

## 1.5 Limited recourse and non-petition

Paragraphs 6 (Limited Recourse; Non-Petition) and 7 (*Obligations as Corporate Obligations*) of the Common Terms apply to this Agreement and shall be deemed set out in full herein.

## 1.6 **Conflict with Common Terms**

If there is any conflict between the provisions of the Common Terms and the provisions of this Agreement, the provisions of this Agreement shall prevail, save for where any provision of this Agreement relates to VAT, in which case the provisions of the Common Terms shall prevail.

## 2. **OBLIGATIONS AS CORPORATE OBLIGATIONS**

## 2.1 No recourse against shareholders and others

No party to this Expenses Loan Agreement shall have any recourse against any director, shareholder, officer, agent, employee or director of any other party to this Expenses Loan Agreement in his capacity as such, by any legal proceedings or otherwise, in respect of any obligation, covenant or agreement of such party (acting in any capacity whatsoever) contained in this Expenses Loan Agreement.

## 2.2 **Corporate obligations**

It is expressly agreed and understood that this Expenses Loan Agreement is a corporate obligation of each party to this Expenses Loan Agreement.

## 2.3 No personal liability

No personal liability shall attach to or be incurred by any shareholder, officer, agent, employee or director of a party to this Expenses Loan Agreement in his capacity as such, under or by reason of any of the obligations, covenants or agreements of such party contained in this Expenses Loan Agreement or implied from this Expenses Loan Agreement and any and all personal liability of every shareholder, officer, agent, employee or director for breaches by such party of any such obligations, covenants or agreements, either at law or by statute or constitution, is hereby expressly waived by the other parties to this Expenses Loan Agreement as a condition of and in consideration for the execution of this Expenses Loan Agreement.

## 3. THE FACILITY

- 3.1 Subject to the terms of this Expenses Loan Agreement, the Expenses Loan Provider makes available to Loan Note Issuer No.1 an uncommitted loan facility in an aggregate amount equal to the Facility Limit.
- 3.2 On each Closing Date, simultaneously with the issue of Loan Notes by Loan Note Issuer No.1, the Expenses Loan Provider will, if it has determined that it will make one or more advances and has received a Utilisation Confirmation, advance to Loan Note Issuer No.1 for the credit of the accounts specified in the relevant Utilisation Request one or more amounts (each an "Advance") to be applied with the net proceeds of the issue of the Loan Notes to provide for the payment of certain costs and expenses of Loan Note Issuer No.1 associated with the issue of the Loan Notes (including the fees, costs and expenses and any other amounts payable to the Loan Note Holder) and towards funding a Series Cash Reserve Account or a Programme Reserve Account.

## 4. UTILISATION

- 4.1 On the Initial Closing Date, the Expenses Loan Provider made an Advance in the aggregate amount of £45,650,000 (the "**Initial Advance**") to Loan Note Issuer No.1, which shall be deemed to be three separate Advances as follows:
  - (a) the first advance being in the amount of £35,000,000 for the credit of the Series Cash Reserve Account (the "**First Advance**");
  - (b) the second advance being in the amount of £8,750,000 for the credit of the Programme Reserve Account (the "**Second Advance**"); and
  - (c) the third advance being in the amount of £1,900,000 for the credit of the Loan Note Issuer No.1 Distribution Account (the "**Third Advance**", and together with the First Advance and the Second Advance, the "**2013 Advances**").
- 4.2 Loan Note Issuer No.1 may utilise the Facility on any Closing Date by delivering to the Expenses Loan Provider by no later than the close of business on the Business Day prior to such Closing Date a Utilisation Request.
- 4.3 Each Utilisation Request is irrevocable and will not be regarded as having been duly completed unless:
  - (a) the proposed Utilisation Date is a Business Day which corresponds with a Closing Date; and
  - (b) it specifies the amount of each Advance to be made pursuant to the Utilisation Request.
- 4.4 One or more Advances may be requested in each Utilisation Request.
- 4.5 Loan Note Issuer No.1 is deemed to repeat the representations set out in Clause 9 (*Representations of Loan Note Issuer No.1 and the Expenses Loan Provider*) on the date of each Utilisation Request.
- 4.6 If the Expenses Loan Provider decides, in its absolute discretion, to make an Advance pursuant to the Utilisation Request, the Expenses Loan Provider will deliver to Loan Note Issuer No. 1, by no later than the close of business on the Business Day prior to the Closing Date on which such Advance is to be made, a Utilisation Notice specifying the terms on which the Advance will be made including, without limitation, the Applicable Margin in respect of each Advance. A Utilisation Notice may specify the terms of one or more Advances requested pursuant to a Utilisation Request.
- 4.7 The Expenses Loan Provider may also specify in a Utilisation Notice any increase which it proposes to make to the Facility Limit.
- 4.8 By no later than the close of business on the Business Day prior to the Closing Date on which an Advance is to be made, Loan Note Issuer No.1 will deliver a Utilisation Confirmation to the Expenses Loan Provider confirming the terms of each Advance and the increase in the Facility Limit (if any) as set out in the Utilisation Notice.
- 4.9 On the Closing Date on which an Advance is to be made following the receipt of a Utilisation Confirmation and if such Advance is subject to scheduled principal repayments, the Expenses Loan Provider will deliver to Loan Note Issuer No.1 an amortisation schedule in substantially the form of Schedule 2 (*Pro-forma Amortisation Schedule*) attached hereto

setting out the Repayment Amounts to be paid in relation to each such Advance as well as clearly specifying the Initial Interest Payment Date in relation to such Advance (the **"Amortisation Schedule"**).

- 4.10 Advances made under this Agreement will not be consolidated.
- 5. **INTEREST**
- 5.1 The periods for which any outstanding Advance is outstanding hereunder will be divided into periods which will correspond with the Interest Periods.
- 5.2 Subject to Clause 10 (*Enforcement Event*), in respect of each Interest Period occurring on or after the Interest Payment Date in December 2020, Loan Note Issuer No.1 will pay interest on each outstanding Advance, at the rate per annum which is the aggregate of (a) the Applicable Margin, and (b) the SONIA Spot Rate for the relevant Interest Period. Interest will accrue from day to day and will be calculated on the basis of actual days elapsed and a year of 365 days (or 366 days if the relevant Interest Period ends in a leap year) and will be (subject to Clause 10 (*Enforcement Event*)) payable in arrears on each Interest Payment Date. For the avoidance of doubt, interest on each 2013 Advance will be paid at the rate set out in the Utilisation Notice dated the Initial Closing Date. For the avoidance of doubt, in respect of each Interest Period occurring prior to the Interest Payment Date in December 2020 Loan Note Issuer No.1 will pay interest on each outstanding Advance, at the rate that was agreed between the parties hereto prior to 17 December 2020.
- 5.3 Any payments made by Loan Note Issuer No.1 under this Expenses Loan Agreement will be paid after deduction of withholding for tax where such deduction or withholding is required by law and, notwithstanding anything contained in the Common Terms, there will be no obligation on Loan Note Issuer No. 1 to pay any additional amounts in respect of such withholding or deduction notwithstanding the term of any other documents to which it is a party.
- 5.4 The Expenses Loan Provider will promptly notify Loan Note Issuer No.1 of each determination of the SONIA Spot Rate made pursuant to this Expenses Loan Agreement.
- 5.5 In the absence of manifest error, a statement made by the Expenses Loan Provider as to any amount of interest payable pursuant to this clause will be conclusive.

#### 6. **PAYMENTS**

Subject always to Clause 5 (*Interest*) above, all payments required to be made by Loan Note Issuer No.1 hereunder will be made to the Expenses Loan Provider at its office as it may specify and will be calculated without reference to any set-off or counterclaim and will be made in sterling in immediately available funds from the Loan Note Issuer No. 1 Distribution Account. If any sum falls due hereunder on a day which is not a Business Day it will be paid on the next Business Day and no additional interest will be payable in respect of such delay.

## 7. **Repayment**

- 7.1 Subject to Clause 10 (*Enforcement Event*) and the remaining provisions of this Clause 7:
  - (a) each Advance which is subject to scheduled principal repayments will be repaid in monthly instalments on each Interest Payment Date as set out in the Amortisation Schedule then in effect in relation to such Advance; and

- (b) each Advance which is not subject to scheduled principal repayments will be repaid in full on the Final Repayment Date in relation to such Advance.
- 7.2 Each date on which an Advance will be repayable in whole or in an instalment will be a "**Repayment Date**" and each amount so repayable a "**Repayment Amount**".
- 7.3 To the extent insufficient funds are available in the Loan Note Issuer No.1 Distribution Account on any Repayment Date to pay in full any Repayment Amount then due (after taking into account all other payments to be made therefrom on such date in accordance with the Trust Supplement and the Security Trust Deed), such Repayment Amount will be reduced by the amount of such shortfall (or, in the event that multiple Repayment Amounts are due on such date, by an amount equal to its pro-rata share of such shortfall) and the next Repayment Amount in respect of the relevant Advance increased by the same amount provided however, that if any part of the relevant Advance remains outstanding after the Final Repayment Date, such Advance will be repaid on the next and subsequent Interest Payment Dates to the extent funds are available for such purpose.
- 7.4 In the event that a Rapid Amortisation Period or Regulated Amortisation Period commences then, on each subsequent Repayment Date during such period, the Repayment Amount scheduled to be paid on that date pursuant to Clause 7.1 will be increased by an amount equal to the lesser of (a) any amount of LNI Available Funds which is allocated in accordance with clause 23.1(I)(E) of the Security Trust Deed towards payment of additional amounts in respect of the Expenses Loan and (b) the amount of the Expenses Loan (taking into account any Repayment Amounts scheduled to be paid on such Repayment Date).

#### 8. **PREPAYMENT**

- 8.1 Loan Note Issuer No.1 may prepay the whole or part of any Advances on any Interest Payment Date to the extent of LNI Available Funds available for such purpose.
- 8.2 Any amounts agreed to be prepaid in accordance with Clause 8.1 above will be additional amounts for the purposes of clause 23.I(I)(E) of the Security Trust Deed.
- 8.3 In relation to any Advance which is credited to the Series Cash Reserve Account in respect of one or more Loan Notes, Loan Note Issuer No. 1 will be deemed to have prepaid such Advance:
  - (a) (subject to the proviso below) in an amount equal to any Series Cash Reserve Account Surplus Amount for the Loan Notes related to such Advance, where such amount is paid to the Receivables Trustee and in turn paid by the Receivables Trustee to the Transferor as Deferred Consideration; and
  - (b) with effect from the Interest Payment Date immediately following the Transfer Date on which such Series Cash Reserve Account Surplus Amount is paid to the Receivables Trustee,

provided that where the amount outstanding under the relevant Advance is less than the Series Cash Reserve Account Surplus Amount, the prepayment will be deemed to be in an amount equal to the Advance (so that its principal amount outstanding is reduced to zero).

- 8.4 In relation to any Advance which is credited to the Programme Reserve Account, Loan Note Issuer No. 1 will be deemed to have prepaid such Advance:
  - (a) (subject to the proviso below) in an amount equal to any Programme Reserve Account Surplus Amount, where such amount is paid to the Receivables Trustee

and in turn paid by the Receivables Trustee to the Transferor as Deferred Consideration; and

(b) with effect from the Interest Payment Date immediately following the Transfer Date on which such Programme Reserve Account Surplus Amount is paid to the Receivables Trustee,

provided that where the amount outstanding under the relevant Advance is less than the Programme Reserve Account Surplus Amount, the prepayment will be deemed to be in an amount equal to the Advance (so that its principal amount outstanding is reduced to zero).

#### 9. REPRESENTATIONS OF LOAN NOTE ISSUER NO.1 AND THE EXPENSES LOAN PROVIDER

- 9.1 Loan Note Issuer No.1 represents and warrants to the Expenses Loan Provider on the date hereof that:
  - (a) Loan Note Issuer No.1 is a company duly incorporated under the laws of England;
  - (b) Loan Note Issuer No.1 has full power and authority to deliver and perform this Expenses Loan Agreement, and has taken all necessary action to authorise the execution, delivery and performance by it of this Expenses Loan Agreement; and
  - (c) this Expenses Loan Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by Loan Note Issuer No.1 and constitutes its legal, valid and binding obligation, enforceable in accordance with its terms subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganisation, receivership and other laws relating to, or affecting generally, the enforcement of creditors' rights and remedies as the same may be applied in the event of the bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganisation, receivership or liquidation or a similar event of Loan Note Issuer No.1 or a moratorium applicable to Loan Note Issuer No.1 and to general principles of equity.
- 9.2 The Expenses Loan Provider represents and warrants to the Loan Note Issuer No. 1 on each Interest Payment Date that it is:
  - (a) a bank within the meaning of section 991 of the Income Tax Act 2007;
  - (b) beneficially entitled to the interest paid to it hereunder; and
  - (c) within the charge to UK corporation tax in respect of that interest.

## 10. **ENFORCEMENT EVENT**

If the Security Trustee serves a Loan Note Enforcement Notice on Loan Note Issuer No.1 pursuant to the terms of any Global Loan Note it will forthwith provide a copy thereof to the Expenses Loan Provider and the Expenses Loan, together with all interest thereon, will, subject always to Clause 11 (*Enforcement and Subordination*), become immediately due and repayable by the Loan Note Issuer No. 1.

## 11. **ENFORCEMENT AND SUBORDINATION**

11.1 The Expenses Loan Provider agrees with the Security Trustee and Loan Note Issuer No.1 to be bound by the terms of the Security Trust Deed (including clause 23 (*Payments of Amounts Representing Finance Charge Collections*) and clause 24 (*Payments of Amounts of Principal Collections*) of the Security Trust Deed relating to priority of payments) and in particular confirms that no sum, whether in respect of principal or interest or otherwise relating to the Expenses Loan, will be due and payable by Loan Note Issuer No.1 except in

accordance with the Security Trust Deed unless and until all sums thereby required to be paid or provided for in priority thereto have been paid or will be discharged in full. The Expenses Loan Provider acknowledges and agrees that the Security Trustee is entitled to all the benefits and protections offered to it under the Security Trust Deed when acting under this Expenses Loan Agreement.

- 11.2 The Expenses Loan Provider will not take any steps for the purpose of receiving any debts whatsoever owing to it by Loan Note Issuer No.1 out of this Expenses Loan Agreement or enforcing any rights arising out of this Expenses Loan Agreement against Loan Note Issuer No.1 or procuring the winding-up, administration, liquidation, bankruptcy or similar process of Loan Note Issuer No.1 or its assets in respect of any of its liabilities whatsoever.
- 11.3 The Expenses Loan Provider agrees that its rights against Loan Note Issuer No.1 under this Expenses Loan Agreement are limited to the extent that the Expenses Loan Provider will not take any action or proceedings against Loan Note Issuer No.1 to recover any amounts due and payable by Loan Note Issuer No.1 to the Expenses Loan Provider under this Expenses Loan Agreement, except to the extent that Loan Note Issuer No.1 has sufficient assets to meet the Expenses Loan Provider's claim in full having taken into account all other liabilities both actual and contingent of Loan Note Issuer No.1 which rank in priority to its liabilities to the Expenses Loan Provider under this Expenses Loan Agreement and so that Loan Note Issuer No.1 will not be obliged to make any payment to the Expenses Loan Provider hereunder if and to the extent that the making of such payment would cause Loan Note Issuer No.1 to be or become unable to pay its debts as they fall due.
- 11.4 Without prejudice to the foregoing provisions of this clause, the Expenses Loan Provider hereby covenants with Loan Note Issuer No. 1 and the Security Trustee that if, whether in the liquidation of Loan Note Issuer No.1 or otherwise (and notwithstanding the provisions of this Clause 11.4), any payment (which shall include any set-off, combination or withholding) is received by it in respect of the Expenses Loan or any interest thereon other than in accordance with the Security Trust Deed the amount so paid will be paid over to the Security Trustee forthwith upon receipt provided however, that this Clause 11.4 will have effect only to the extent that it does not constitute or create and is not deemed to constitute or create any mortgage, charge or other security interest of any kind, provided, further, however, that as between the Security Trustee and Loan Note Issuer No. 1 or any liquidator thereof such amounts paid under this Clause 11.4 will be deemed to be paid and as between the Expenses Loan Provider and Loan Note Issuer No.1 or any liquidator thereof such amounts paid under this Clause 11.4 will be deemed not to have been paid.
- 11.5 The Expenses Loan Provider hereby covenants with the Security Trustee that it will not set off or claim to set off the Expenses Loan or any interest thereon or any part of either thereof against any liability owed by it to Loan Note Issuer No. 1
- 11.6 The Expenses Loan Provider hereby covenants with Loan Note Issuer No.1 that it will not take any corporate action or other steps or legal proceedings for the winding-up, dissolution, re-organisation, bankruptcy or similar process or for the appointment of a receiver, administrator, administrative receiver, trustee, liquidator, sequestrator or similar officer of Loan Note Issuer No. 1 or any Investor Beneficiary or of any or all of the revenues and assets of any of them.

## 12. **FEES**

Each of the parties hereto will bear its own costs and expenses in connection with the negotiation, preparation and execution of this Expenses Loan Agreement and no fees will be payable in connection herewith.

## 13. **Assignment and variation**

Each of the parties hereto agree that the Expenses Loan Provider may not assign its rights hereunder and that the rights of Loan Note Issuer No.1 hereunder may be assigned to the Security Trustee. No variation of this Expenses Loan Agreement will be effective unless it is in writing and signed by or on behalf of each of the parties hereto.

## 14. **INFORMATION AND BENEFIT**

- 14.1 The Expenses Loan Provider will provide to the Security Trustee such information and evidence in respect of any dealing between Loan Note Issuer No.1 and the Expenses Loan Provider under this Expenses Loan Agreement or otherwise as the Security Trustee may reasonably request for the purpose of discharging the duties, trusts, powers, authorities and discretions vested in the Security Trustee in or under the Relevant Documents or by operation of Iaw and Loan Note Issuer No.1 hereby waives any right or duty of confidentiality which it may have or which may be owed to it by the Expenses Loan Provider in respect of such information and evidence. The Security Trustee shall keep all information provided under or in connection with this Expenses Loan Agreement confidential pursuant to clause 16 (*Confidentiality*) of the Master Framework Agreement.
- 14.2 The parties to this Expenses Loan Agreement acknowledge and agree that the Security Trustee is party hereto for the better preservation of its rights and benefits and, subject to its obligation to provide a copy of any Loan Note Enforcement Notice on the Expenses Loan Provider under Clause 10 (*Enforcement Event*), it shall have no obligations or liabilities under this Expenses Loan Agreement.

## 15. **GOVERNING LAW**

This Agreement and all non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by and shall be construed in accordance with English law.

## 16. **JURISDICTION**

## 16.1 English Courts

The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute (a "**Dispute**") arising out of or in connection with this Agreement (including a dispute relating to any non-contractual obligation arising out of or in connection with this Agreement) or the consequences of its nullity.

## 16.2 **Convenient Forum**

The parties agree that the courts of England are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle Disputes between them and, accordingly, that they will not argue to the contrary.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF** the parties hereto have signed and executed this Expenses Loan Agreement the day and year first above written.

## Outstanding Advances Schedule

This Schedule reflects the Outstanding Advances as at the Effective Date.

Terms defined in the Expenses Loan Agreement have the same meaning in this Outstanding Advances Schedule unless given a different meaning in this Outstanding Advances Schedule.

Advance Name	Advance Drawn Date	Beginning Balance	Principal Balance Outstanding at the Effective Date	Advance subject to Amortisation?
2020-1 Adv. 1	30 July 2020	£31,000,000 GBP	£16,000,000 GBP	No
2020-1 Adv. 3	30 July 2020	£8,061,000 GBP	£4,311,000 GBP	No
2023-1 Adv. 1	28 April 2023	£14,000,000 GBP	£14,000,000 GBP	No
2023-1 Adv. 2	28 April 2023	£1,800,000 GBP	£1,028,571 GBP	Yes
2023-1 Adv. 3	28 April 2023	£3,500,000 GBP	£3,500,000 GBP	No
2023-2 Adv. 1	27 October 2023	£9,000,000 GBP	£9,000,000 GBP	No
2023-2 Adv. 2	27 October 2023	£500,000 GBP	£357,143 GBP	Yes
2023-2 Adv. 3	27 October 2023	£2,250,000 GBP	£2,250,000 GBP	No

## Pro-forma Amortisation Schedule

The Initial Interest Payment Date in relation to the Advance will be [•].

Terms defined in the Expenses Loan Agreement have the same meaning in this Amortisation Schedule unless given a different meaning in this Amortisation Schedule.

The Applicable Margin in respect of the Advance will be [•] %.

## \*\* Period Represents Month in which amounts are to be paid \*\*

	Period	Beg Balance	Principal	End Balance
1				
2				
3				
4				
5				
6				
7				
8				
9				
10				
11				
12				
13				
14				
15				
16				
17				
18				
19				
20				

## **Utilisation Request**

From: Delamare Cards Funding 1 Limited

To: Barclays Bank Plc

Dated:

Dear Sirs

DELAMARE CARDS FUNDING 1 LIMITED - EXPENSES LOAN AGREEMENT DATED 31 OCTOBER 2008 (AS THE SAME MAY BE AMENDED, SUPPLEMENTED, VARIED, REPLACED AND/OR NOVATED FROM TIME TO TIME) (THE EXPENSES LOAN AGREEMENT)

- 1. We refer to the Expenses Loan Agreement. This is a Utilisation Request. Terms defined in the Expenses Loan Agreement have the same meaning in this Utilisation Request unless given a different meaning in this Utilisation Request.
- 2. We wish to borrow the following Advances on the following terms:

Closing Date in respect of which Advance requested:	[•]
Amount of first Advance:	[•]
Amount of second Advance:	[•]
Amount of third Advance:	[•]

- 3. The proceeds of [the first Advance] should be credited to [account].
- 4. The proceeds of [the second Advance] should be credited to [account].
- 5. The proceeds of [the third Advance] should be credited to [account].
- 6. This Utilisation Request is irrevocable.

Yours faithfully

authorised signatory for Delamare Cards Funding 1 Limited

## **Utilisation Notice**

From: Barclays Bank Plc

To: Delamare Cards Funding 1 Limited

Dated:

Dear Sirs

DELAMARE CARDS FUNDING 1 LIMITED - EXPENSES LOAN AGREEMENT DATED 31 OCTOBER 2008 (AS THE SAME MAY BE AMENDED, SUPPLEMENTED, VARIED, REPLACED AND/OR NOVATED FROM TIME TO TIME) (THE EXPENSES LOAN AGREEMENT)

- 1. We refer to the Expenses Loan Agreement. This is a Utilisation Notice. Terms defined in the Expenses Loan Agreement have the same meaning in this Utilisation Notice unless given a different meaning in this Utilisation Notice.
- 2. Further to the Utilisation Request dated [•] requesting certain Advances to be made on [•], we hereby notify you of our agreement to make Advance(s) subject to the following terms:

Amount:	[•]
Applicable Margin:	[•]
Closing Date on which Advance to be made:	[•]
Initial Interest Payment Date:	[•]
Final Repayment Date:	Please refer to the Amortisation Schedule in respect of the [first/ second/ third] Advance, which will be provided on or before the Closing Date on which such Advance(s) are to be made.
Amount:	[•]
Applicable Margin:	[•]
Closing Date on which Advance to be made:	[•]
Initial Interest Payment Date:	[•]
Final Repayment Date:	[•]
Amount:	[•]
Applicable Margin:	[•]
Closing Date on which Advance to be made:	[•]
Initial Interest Payment Date:	[•]
Final Repayment Date:	[•]

- 3. The New Facility Limit following the provision of the above Advances is [•].
- 4. Upon receipt of this Utilisation Notice, please confirm your agreement to the terms of the Advances by signing and returning a Utilisation Confirmation by no later than the close of business on the Business Day prior to the Closing Date on which the Advances are to be made.

Yours faithfully

authorised signatory for

Barclays Bank Plc

## **Utilisation Confirmation**

From: Delaware Cards Funding 1 Limited

To: Barclays Bank Plc

Dated:

Dear Sirs

DELAMARE CARDS FUNDING 1 LIMITED - EXPENSES LOAN AGREEMENT DATED 31 OCTOBER 2008 (AS THE SAME MAY BE AMENDED, SUPPLEMENTED, VARIED, REPLACED AND/OR NOVATED FROM TIME TO TIME) (THE EXPENSES LOAN AGREEMENT)

- 1. We refer to the Expenses Loan Agreement. This is a Utilisation Confirmation. Terms defined in the Expenses Loan Agreement have the same meaning in this Utilisation Confirmation unless given a different meaning in this Utilisation Confirmation.
- 2. We hereby notify you of our agreement to the terms of each Advance specified in the Utilisation Notice dated [•].
- 3. The proceeds of the Advance should be credited to:
  - (a) in the case of [the first advance], to [account];
  - (b) in the case of [the second advance], to [account]; and
  - (c) in the case of [the third advance], to [account].

Yours faithfully

authorised signatory for **Delamare Cards Funding 1 Limited** 

#### SIGNATORIES

## **EXPENSES LOAN PROVIDER**

## Barclays Bank Plc

By:

Name:

Title:

# LOAN NOTE ISSUER NO.1

# **Delamare Cards Funding 1 Limited**

By:

Name:

Title:

## SECURITY TRUSTEE

# The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch

By:

Name:

Title:

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF** the parties hereto have executed and delivered this Deed as a deed on the day and year first above written.

EXECUTED AS A DEED BY TESCO PERSONAL FINANCE PLC as the Outgoing Expenses Loan Provider	) ) )
Acting by its authorised attorneys:	
Duly authorised Attorney:	
Duly authorised Attorney:	
EXECUTED AS A DEED BY BARCLAYS BANK PLC as the Incoming Expenses Loan Provider	) ) )
Acting by its authorised signatory:	
In the presence of a witness:	
Name of Witness: Suj Kiani	
Address of Witness: 1 Churchill Place, E14	5нр
Occupation of Witness: Finance Professional	
EXECUTED AS A DEED BY THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, LONDON BRANCH as the Security Trustee	) ) )
Acting by its duly authorised signatory:	
EXECUTED AS A DEED BY DELAMARE CARDS FUNDING 1 LIMITED as the Loan Note Issuer No.1	) ) )
Acting by its authorised attorneys:	
Duly authorised Attorney:	
Duly authorised Attorney:	